# CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

# Minutes of a meeting of the **Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee**

held on Thursday, 4th December, 2014 at Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

#### **PRESENT**

Councillor J Saunders (Vice-Chair, in the Chair)

Councillors C Andrew, R Domleo, L Jeuda, S Jones, G Merry and A Moran

## **Apologies**

Councillors M Simon

#### **ALSO PRESENT**

Councillor P Hoyland – Chairman of Children, Families and Adult Safeguarding Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Councillor J Clowes – Care and Health in the Community Portfolio Holder
Councillor S Gardiner – Deputy Cabinet Member
Jo Vitta – South Cheshire Clinical Commissioning Group

# 59 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 6 November 2014 be approved and signed by the Chairman

#### 60 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest

## 61 DECLARATION OF PARTY WHIP

There were no declarations of party whip

## 62 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION

There were no members of the public present who wished to speak

#### 63 ANNUAL REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Dr Heather Grimbaldeston, Director of Public Health(DPH), presented her Annual Report for 2013/14. This year's report was focused on Children's Health and as such the Committee invited members of the Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny to attend and join the Committee's discussion.

During the discussion the following points were made:

- This was the first time the DPH had selected a specific age group to focus her report on. She decided to focus on children as there previously hadn't been much information available on children's health and most focus in the borough had been on older people's health, due to its ageing population.
- Most services were not geared towards providing children with a different type of service to adults. There should be child friendly standards for all services provided by Cheshire East.
- 9.5% of households were in fuel poverty with rural areas the most likely to be in fuel poverty although Crewe had significant levels of fuel poverty. Being in fuel poverty affected children's health making them more susceptible to respiratory conditions such as cold and flu, and hypothermia.
- There were 11 children's centres in Cheshire East in 2013, all in urban areas. A strategy to consider how children's centre services could be made more accessible to rural families needed to be developed.
- Cheshire East's figures for the number of mothers smoking during pregnancy were worse than the England average. This was a particular problem in Crewe which required a focus of support services in this area.
- Breastfeeding was less common among young mothers and in deprived areas
- Families should be empowered to make their own decisions rather than prescribing ways to live. There was a feeling that a common sense approach to children's health had been lost and that parents expected things to be done for them. Most childhood illnesses could be managed by parents and in most cases Pharmacists would be able offer advice on treatment, reducing the need to see a GP.
- Members believe that public health should link into schools more due to their access to children and influence on their lifestyles and education.
- The environmental impact on health needed to be considered in more detail.
- More awareness was needed of the affects of preconception activity on children's health.
- The report was an aspirational account by the DPH and only a few of the services that contributed to outcomes were commissioned by Public Health. The report needed to be used to influence other commissioners to ensure they worked together to improve health pathways.
- The Committee wanted to see hoe the PDH's 2012/13 report on early deaths had affect commissioning and whether it had lead to improved health outcomes. It was suggested that looking back at previous years' reports should be standard practice to ensure they are effective. The Committee also wanted to review outcomes following this report in six months time.

**RESOLVED**:

- (a) That the Annual Report of the Director of Public Health 2013/14 be noted.
- (b) That the Committee, along with the Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny Committee, review the achievement of the aspirations of the report in six months time.
- (c) That the Committee consider an item on the environmental impacts on health at a future meeting.
- (d) That the Annual Report of the Director of Public Health should be preceded, each year as a norm, by a report on health outcomes following the previous year's report.
- (e) That an item to review outcomes following the Annual Report of the Director of Public Health 2012/13 on early deaths should be added to the work programme to be considered early in 2015.

#### 64 EASTERN CHESHIRE CCG STROKE SERVICE TRANSFORMATION

Jacki Wilkes, Associate Director of Commissioning at NHS Eastern Cheshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG), to provide a brief overview of stroke services in Eastern Cheshire following a briefing that councillors had previously received at an informal meeting in October 2014.

The CCG was proposing to move stroke services from Macclesfield General Hospital to specialist centres in Salford Royal and Stepping Hill Hospitals. Evidence showed that specialist services improved mortality rates and reduced length of hospital stays. The CCG needed to improve rehabilitation services both in and out of hospitals and would look to provide services outside of hospital as often as possible.

RESOLVED – That the Committee formally supports the development of stroke services proposed by NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG.

## 65 FORWARD PLAN

The Committee examined the Forward Plan

RESOLVED - That the Forward Plan be noted

#### **66 WORK PROGRAMME**

The Committee considered its work programme.

It was suggested that the items on Top Up Policy and Direct Payments shouldn't be part of the agenda for a formal meeting if they were only to note the changes being made and it would be more appropriate to send a briefing on the changes to councillors informally. Following the briefings being sent to councillors there could be an item on a future agenda to allow members an opportunity to provide feedback and ask questions about the policies.

It was suggested that an item on the development of a Council Quality Assurance scheme, to look at the quality of care provided in care homes, should be provided to the Committee in February.

RESOLVED – That the Work Programme be updated following the changes discussed.

The meeting commenced at 10.03 am and concluded at 12.15 pm

Councillor J Saunders (Vice-Chair, in the Chair)